
For the hearing impaired, a sign language interpreter can be provided with 48 hrs notice prior to 
the meeting.  Please call 541-766-6928 or the Oregon Communications Relay Service at 7-1-1 to 
arrange for TTY services.  A large print agenda can be available by calling 541-766-6928. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Library Advisory Board Meeting

A G E N D A  

 Call to Order 

 Introductions 

 Visitors’ Propositions 

 Approval of July 15, 2015 Board Minutes 

 Library Advisory Board Packet Questions & Comments  

 Election of Officers 

 Strategic Plan Discussion 

 Library Advisory Board Annual Report 

 Director’s Report 

 Division Manager Reports 

 Board Reports 
 Friends of the Library Board 
 Foundation Board 

 

 Information Sharing 

 Adjournment 

 

 

 

Documents for Meeting 
 Library Advisory Board Minutes – July 15, 2015 
 Library Advisory Board Report – July 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wednesday 
August 5, 2015 

 
7:30 pm 

 

Main Meeting Room 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you are unable to attend the Board 
Meeting, please notify Library Director 
Carolyn Rawles by calling 
(541) 766-6910. 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES 
July 15, 2015 

 
Board Present 

 

Jennifer Alexander, Vice-Chair 
Katherine Bremser 
Diane Cygan 
Paula Krane 
Steve Stephenson 
Eric Dickey 
Cheryl Maze 
Anne Schuster 
 
Absent/Excused: 
Jacque Schreck, Chair 
Mike Beilstein 
Scott Elmshaeuser 
 
 

Staff Present 
 

Carolyn Rawles, Library Director 
Shasta Barnes, Circulation Supervisor 
Andrew Cherbas, Extensions and Technology Mgr. 
Rachel Denue, Senior Administrative Specialist 
Mary Finnegan, Adult and Youth Services Manager 
Carol Klamkin, Library Administrative Services Mgr. 
Felicia Uhden, Access Services Manager 
 
 
Visitors:  
Jeanne Holmes 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

Agenda Item Information Only Action 

Call to Order 6:40 pm  

Visitors’ Propositions  None. 

Minutes:  June 3, 2015  Approved with correction. 

Library Advisory Board Packet X  

Election of Officers X  

Strategic Plan Workshop X  

Adjournment 8:59 pm  

 
 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chair, Jennifer Alexander at 6:40 pm. 

Went around the room with introductions.  Jeanne Holmes introduced herself and gave a brief summary 
of her professional background.   

 

II. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS - None. 
 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Motion:  Steve Stephenson moved to approve the June 3, 2015 meeting minutes.  Katherine 
Bremser requested a change under VII: Strategic Plan Discussion, last paragraph on page 4 of the 
meeting minutes, change “is it quick” to “it is quick”.  Seconded by Paula Krane and the motion carried.  
 
 



Library Advisory Board 
July 15, 2015   Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 6 

 

IV. LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS & COMMENTS  
 
Katherine asked if under the staff report on the access section, does the information on magazine 
subscriptions mean duplicate subscriptions, or maybe at the branches.  Felicia Uhden replied that yes, 
that means that there are copies at the branches and Carolyn Rawles added that there are a few titles 
that the main Library has more than one copy as well. 
 
Eric Dickey asked if anyone has had problems printing the meeting packet, as he has a hard time 
printing it sometimes.  Carolyn replied that library administration can try to send the actual packet to him 
directly if he would prefers.  Paula stated that she only prints out pages through the reports, not the 
articles and stuff, and she doesn’t have any problems with that.  Cheryl Maze commented that she 
appreciated the extra attachments in the packet this time.  Katherine agreed. 
 

V. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Paula moved to table elections of officers until the next regular meeting in August.  Seconded by Cheryl 
Maze and motion carried. 
 

VI. STRATEGIC PLAN WORKSHOP 
 
Jeanne reviewed the Strategic Planning Agenda and stated that one thing she wants to do before going 
further is to review the guidelines for Vision and Mission Statements.   
 

VISION STATEMENT MISSION STATEMENT 

 Generally talks about the future.  Generally talks about the present state. 

 Challenges.  Clarifies. 

 Where you want to go?  How you get there? 

 What do we want to move toward, when 
do we want to reach that stage, how do 
we want to do it, and what is benefit to the 
world?   

 What do we want to do today, for whom 
do we want to do it and what is benefit?   

 Features of effective statements:  
describes bright future; memorable, 
engaging, realistic, achievable; aligns with 
organizations culture and values, and 
provides inspiration and focus. 

 Features of effective statements:  clarifies 
who clients are and what is responsibility 
of organization to clients, and short clear 
and powerful. 

 
 
VISION STATEMENT IDEAS: 
 Need historical start. 
 One way it could be framed is to put the specific year, “since 1899”. 
 Make it future thinking by using information like “another 100 years”. 
 “Effective in the 21st Century”. 
 Use “Will be” as a focal point. 
 Use bolded/key words like:  trusted resource, access, engage, explore, enrich, community needs. 

o Organize by the themes. 
 “Exceptional”. 
 Community Anchor – means that it is holding the community together – focal point – hub. 

o Don’t want to use any words that mean not just here or stuck. 
 Cutting edge, innovative. 
 What community stands for. 



Library Advisory Board 
July 15, 2015   Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 Inspire the community to be better, explore things, be creative, be moving, be present. 
 Need fun - Heavy on educational side, something for everyone. 
 Access to the rest of the world and minds. 
 “Active Language: - be as active as possible – we offer, we do, we are.” 
 Lifetime education, information, all ages, everyone – access for all. 
 Lifelong learning and lifelong literacy. 

o Life help - file taxes, divorce, apply for jobs. 
 Explore new forms. 
 Continuing tradition in a different way. 
 Be aware and know of library and feel that we’re important, value to community. 
 Engaged, different communities. 
 Interactive exchange – communities learning about what the Library has to offer and then seeking 

specifics and taking it back to their groups. 
 Enrich people’s lives in all different ways – “equalizer”. 
 Make people’s lives better. 
 Enable you to be an effective citizen – active part of community.  
 Resource for those that don’t have resources – computers, books, movies, etc. 
 Essential services. 
 **Support the residents of Benton County in their day to day economic, social, and civic 

participation. 
 Partnerships. 
 Free access to all resident. 
 Community place where people get things that help with everyday life. 
 Essence of our community – invoke how special. 
 Excitement – fun. 
 Changing people’s lives – enrich, improve, more exciting. 
 Something for everyone. 
 Enrich. Excite. Explore. 

  
Jeanne stated that what makes a Vision statement into the future is engaging more people to get their 
essential life information from the library.  Reaching out, connecting, etc.  It’s about getting bigger and 
better and engaging more people.  She proposed taking all of these ideas that she wrote down and 
bringing them back to the next meeting.  It may not be exactly right, but it will be in the right direction.  
 
 
MISSION STATEMENT IDEAS: 
Corvallis-Benton County Public Library’s Current Mission Statement:  “Bringing people and information 
together.” 
 
Proposal of a new Mission Statement:  “Engaging the community through information and recreational 
materials which excite exploration and enrich lives.” 
 
Jeanne stated that a Mission Statement helps staff have a phrase to interact with the public.  It is a 
quick, easy thing to remember.  It gives a main goal and helps everyone understand where they are 
and where they’re going.  It has both an internal and external purpose. 
 

 Needs to be shorter. 
 Mission Statement should remind you what should we be doing right now – this is important, this 

is what we are supposed to be doing. 
 Some examples of other libraries include: 

o “Your place. Stories you want, information you need, connections you seek.” 
o “Transforming lives for a better community.” 
o “Empowering our community to learn and create.” 



Library Advisory Board 
July 15, 2015   Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 6 

 

o “Connecting you to the joy of reading and to information for lifelong learning.” 
o “Provide experiences that inspire, inform and entertain.” 

 Experiences seem inclusive and can mean many things. 
 Entertain could be controversial – staff likes excite more than entertain. 
 “E” words. 
 Inspiring ideas, enriching lives, creating community. 
 Information first, people second. 
 Engage. Connect. Inspire. 
 Inspire. Enrich. Create. 
 We don’t want to be put into a box by the phrase we choose. 
 How do you connect that to the Library? – Too vague. 
 Promote this for library, so it makes a connection. 
 Transforming community. 
 Don’t want same as another library – let’s be innovative – find something that is us. 
 Use lengthy statement, but use a shorter one for marketing. 
 Take out inspire, rich, create – Ideas. Life. Community. 
 Connecting community to culture. 
 Strengthening community. 
 This gives the mission statement for real value and use – the staff will do the work of the library 

and how they will use it, it makes it useful, lightens it up a lot. 
 
Carolyn stated that she will take this back to the Library staff and have them refine the statements and 
she will bring the updated ideas back to the next meeting.  
 
 
AREAS OF EMPHASIS: 
Categorization of ideas brought to the meeting by board members and staff: 
 
Facility Space: 

 Coffee shop. 
 Develop a plan for the Fenner building. 
 Maker Space. 
 Expand facilities. 
 Teen space. 
 Youth & Teen engagements:  music, reading, classes, reader’s theatre, coffee services/shop. 
 Make building a welcoming space. 

 
Strategic Plan: 

 Measurable assessments of plan objectives, goals, methods. 
 Vision. 
 Enrich. Excite. Explore. 

 
Partnerships: 

 Expanding resources. 
 Outreach to more people, etc. 
 Community partnerships and involvement. 
 OSU partnerships. 

 
Resources: 

 Stable adequate funding. 
 Increase materials budget. 
 Plan for resources. 

 



Library Advisory Board 
July 15, 2015   Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Marketing: 
 Connect with users. 
 Expand outreach. 
 Outreach with non-users. 
 Social media marketing. 
 Be a known community. 
 Attract new users. 
 Develop new strategies to retain new users. 
 Tell our story. 

 
Expanding Services: 

 Ambassador program. 
 Make OSU card work here. 
 School emphasis. 
 Expand e-book/remote use. 
 Work with 509J. 
 Expand language/cultures. 
 Improve online services and ILS. 
 Improve library software. 
 Embed reference staff in schools. 
 Participate in Kindergarten reading readiness. 
 Expand culture. 
 Connect with users. 
 Insure adequate staff level. 
 Partner with and support local schools.  

 
 
COMMUNITY CATALYST: 

 Support for learning and personal enrichment 
 Equitable access 

 
 
NOTES/COMMENTS: 

 Bilingual staff and diversity. 
 Safety issues: code of conduct/security. 
 Facilities – spaces not flexible or big enough 

o Gathering spaces (rooms for people to meet or programs – other than housing materials). 
 Finding ways for people in their twenties to have a place to be. 
 Do we need to find twenties something, or focus on thirties something?  
 We can’t retain the twenty something’s as they are college kids and move on after school- not as 

worried about providing things for 18 – 25 year olds, but more 25-35 years and older.  The 
younger group will use the OSU library. 

 Connecting people, keep them connected, retain them as users and continue to remain users.  
More hands on stuff – maker space, cake pans, tools, etc.  Try to make online systems more 
like Amazon, make them easier to compete with the major online groups.  Importance of 
marketing.  Discover stuff when in library.  Early literacy, making sure no one is left behind.  We 
serve everyone and the most vulnerable.  Service to immigrants.  Changing roles of librarians.  
People don’t ask as many reference questions any more.  Roles are changing, more of a 
spokes person of the library, out in the community representing us, helping with technology, 
pulling stuff together and organizing stuff.  Keep in mind for future – no idea of future. 

 Flexible, open minded, speed/act fast, nimble, dynamic. 
 Need to know what to cut/get rid of, have those conversations. 



Library Advisory Board 
July 15, 2015   Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 Use of professional staff:   how do they spend their time – what services can they provide – new 
way of envisioning the staff expectations. 

 Is staff out in the community to interact?  Not enough, we need to do more of that. 
 Staff continuing education to help be active as new issues arise – do more than already are. 
 Adequate staff – as staff members are doing more than one job already. 
 We need to be more creative and have time to do more outreach. 
 How can the library go into community and partner with people – we don’t identify the community 

needs – what their main needs are and how can library help with that – they feel they don’t 
need the library, but find out the needs and we find out how to help them. 

 Community needs planned exercises/programs. 
 Co-worker space – co-working and maker space – code for America would be cool, it engages 

the community through technology through government – community becomes involved with 
day to day community and city occurrences.   

 Library has the flexibility to do things like that. 
 
 
BRAINSTORMING LIST:    
How will we know we have a good plan? 

 Transformative. 
 Measurable. 
 Relevant to the community and its values. 
 If it provides direction. 
 Inspires, motivates. 
 Staff is excited about it. 
 Common vision (board, staff, city council). 
 Ambitious, realistic and workable. 
 Plain language so anybody can understand it/simple/concise. 
 Achievable. 
 Clear direction (staff will know what to do). 
 In line with industry standards – best practices. 
 Positive. 
 A way to use it every day. 

 
 
WHAT CHALLENGES DOES THE LIBRARY FACE IN THE NEXT FIVE YEARS?: 

 The need for succession planning and staff turnover. 
 Funding. 
 Retention of staff. 
 Rate of change. 
 Community diversity. 
 Whatever technology – phase and act quickly – keep up. 
 Levy renewal. 
 Balancing traditional use with changing needs – staff and patron issue. 
 Building constraints (facilities). 
 Competition – other city services for funding and similar providers of content (Amazon, etc.). 
 Homeless issue/safety/security. 
 Changing demographics. 

 
Everyone thanked Jeanne on her hard work in this process. 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:59 pm. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

****************************** 
LIBRARY BOARD REPORT 

 
August 5, 2015 

****************************** 
 
 
 

 
 
REPORTING PERIOD:  July 2015 
 
 
 A. Division Highlights 
 
   Administration 

  All the last transactions for FY 14-15 were processed, cash tills balanced, 
final statistics were collected, and the fourth quarter financial report was 
submitted to the City Manger. 

 Management Team worked on the Library’s new mission statement, as follow 
up to the Board’s July 15 strategic plan work session. 

 “New” used photocopiers for the public were installed on the second floor in 
Corvallis, and at Philomath and Monroe. These rented machines are newer 
than our previous models and shouldn’t require as much maintenance. 

 Staff continued to respond to requests from the Finance Department for 
reports and information as they attempt to reconcile Library transactions with 
the City financial system. 

 
   Access Services 

 Library Specialist III Tammy Rider finished her term on the Picnic/Employee 
Recognition committee by working at the annual picnic. Library Specialist II 
Jean Winniford-Gray also worked on this project. This year, the picnic was 
held at the Public Works facility.  

 Library Specialist III Miryam Hamlyn, Library Specialist II Karen Kennedy, and 
Shelvers Laura White and Stephen Whitener attended the Oregon Library 
Division Support Staff annual conference.  

 Library Specialist III Rob Sullivan attended the Adult Services meeting which 
was a working session for the annual magazine review.  

 Life magazines will have a new life—in homes of community members. They 
have been transferred to the Friends for sale in the 50¢ Book Sale Room.   

 Circulation is wrapping up the recruitment for Casual Library Clerks. The 
recruitment for Library Specialist II has closed and applications are being 
reviewed. Library Specialist II Becky Myrold announced she will be leaving us 
to attend graduate school and her last day will be August 15.   



Library Board Report 
August 5, 2015 
Reporting Period – July 2015 
Page 2 
 

 We were able to roll over our Acquisitions system and began another year of 
ordering materials on July 1.  

 
   Adult and Youth Services 

 Elizabeth Johnson started work as the new Community Library Specialist in 
Youth Services.  

 Youth Services has experienced a lively July with Summer Reading programs 
for children and teens!  

 Over 250 future superheroes attended the Summer Superheroes program – a 
cape and mask-making program and superhero training camp. 

 For science enthusiasts with an interest in all things “gross”, a Science 
Grossology program was presented by Evergreen Space and Aviation 
Museum’s educational outreach staff. Over 175 attendees learned what it’s 
like to be an astronaut traveling in space – including the not-so-glamorous, 
sometimes messy facts about necessary bodily functions in space.  

 July 12-18th marked the annual Blueberry Coupon Week. Blueberry Meadows 
kindly offers a coupon for a free pound of u-pick blueberries to all summer 
readers that visit the Library during this week.  

 Philomath Librarian Ashley Hall partnered with a variety of local organizations 
to bring a “Heroes for the Planet” educational resource and recycled craft 
program to 221 children and families at the Corvallis Library as part of the 
Summer Reading program. Partner agencies included Benton Soil and Water 
Conservation District, Greenbelt Land Trust, Mary's River Watershed Council, 
Republic Services, and Starker Forests, Inc.  

 Early childhood movement and dance instructor, Iris Nason, presented a fun 
and interactive movement program for 167 preschool children and their 
caregivers on July 16th.  

 “Craft Your Own Hero Story” was the theme for the July 22nd Summer 
Reading program that featured creative activities to construct scenery and 
buildings, decorate storytelling stones, and create a variety superhero 
puppets and wooden peg dolls. The drop-in craft program provided 120 
attendees a chance to let their creative storytelling and crafting ideas flow. 

 Families with preschool children attended a Saturday Science program about 
flight on July 25th. Stories, songs, and hands-on craft and science activities 
provided families with an interactive first look at the science of flight. 

 On July 29th, a Kids Book Swap provided children of all ages a chance to 
exchange hardcover and paperback books in good condition.  

 The summer free lunch program, sponsored by the Corvallis 509J School 
District, continued to provide between 30-85 children each day with a free 
lunch at the Library.  

 On July 1st, 25 teens attended the Teen Animanga Extravaganza.   
 A very successful Avengers movie series has been featured every Thursday 

afternoon at the Corvallis Library. About 23-40 teens have attended each 
showing.  



Library Board Report 
August 5, 2015 
Reporting Period – July 2015 
Page 3 
 

 Teen Days have grown in popularity this summer! A variety of videogames, 
board games, crafts, activities, and snacks have kept the group engaged at 
this biweekly teen program.  

 Youth Librarian Kristy Kemper Hodge has been visiting the Boys and Girls 
Club on the 4th Tuesday of the month during the summer.  

 On July 11th, Ruth Rose Hennessey of Adult Services, Kristy Kemper-Hodge 
of Youth Services, Peggy Giles of our fabulous Bookmobile, Andrew Cherbas 
our fearless Extensions leader, and Extensions substitute extraordinaire Anne 
Helms went out for Beavs & the Bookmobile. Along with some awesome OSU 
student athletes they interacted with an enthusiastic audience of over 350 
down at the Corvallis Farmers Market. 

 Sean Gaskell, former Pacific Northwest resident of Asheville, North Carolina 
visited the Library to play the West African kora. Eighty-one people came out 
to learn more about this traditional instrument as well as to enjoy Gaskell’s 
traditional and modern styling. 

 The four monthly programs for adults had their usual solid crowds of 
enthusiasts: seven folks came together for the Graphic Novel Book Club and 
discussed one of the best books ever, Can’t We Talk About Something More 
Pleasant?, ten people discussed Telegraph Avenue by Michael Chabon for 
the Adult Book Club; six people learned about the Library’s art and history via 
Freda Vars’ informative monthly art tours; and, five people gathered to 
celebrate that lost art of letter writing during the monthly Letter Writing Social. 

 Summer at Your Library for Adults continues until August 31st! For every 
eligible activity someone completes, they may fill out an entry form to win one 
of several grand prizes at the end of the summer. So far, there have been 761 
total entries and 127 unique participants in this program. 

 Bonnie Brzozowski, Reference Librarian, and Shasta Barnes, Circulation 
Supervisor, attended an energizing, forward-thinking, idea-laden one-day 
seminar in Portland called Lead the Change: Transform Your Stacks to Drive 
Circulation. 

 
   Extension Services 

 Extension Services staff have been extremely busy all month at all the 
branches presenting Summer Reading programs to patrons throughout 
Benton County. Many of the programs are the same as the ones presented in 
Corvallis, but with modifications to appeal to the patrons at each branch. 

 Freshman athletes from the OSU BEST Program and Benny Beaver visited 
the Bookmobile at the Farmers Market. Lots of kid came by to do a craft, have 
their picture taken with Benny, or get an autograph from an athlete. 

 
   Technology 

 The Extension Services workroom was rearranged to provide a workstation 
for Information Systems Analyst Jesse Adams. Also the Friends’ Benton 
Books operation moved to the second floor office near the study rooms. Early 
indications are that everyone is happy with their new digs. 



Library Board Report 
August 5, 2015 
Reporting Period – July 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 B. Other 
 

 Selection librarians and management team members attended a webinar on 
the collection management software product, Collection HQ. 

 In addition to the regular monthly meeting, the Library Advisory Board had a 
work session on July 15 to discuss the Library’s vision and mission as part of 
the strategic planning process. Jeanne Holmes facilitated the meeting. 
 

 




























	Agenda 08.05.15
	Library Board 2015.07.15
	Report 07-2015
	articles for 2015.08.05

